








Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

Nov. 16, 2021 / 6:30 p.m. 
Belgrade Town Office 

990 Augusta Road 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person.  
The public may also view the meeting and participate online at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 
 

A G E N D A 
 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Open Meeting.  
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Nov. 9, 2021, Selectboard minutes. 
B. Discussion and consideration of public water system. 
C. Discussion and consideration of committee appointment policy. 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consideration of appointments: 

1. Sue Bradshaw – Senior Resources Committee 
B. Discussion and consideration of designating the North Belgrade Community 

Center as a senior center.  
C. Discussion of short-term rentals. 
D. Discussion and consideration of selling used fire truck and firefighting 

equipment.  
4. WARRANT 
5. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


 

Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

Nov. 9, 2021 / 6:30 p.m. 
Belgrade Town Office 

990 Augusta Road 
 

This meeting can be watched at 
https://youtu.be/Tca1dsbxAEo 

 

M I N U T E S 
 
Selectboard members present: Melanie Jewell, Barbara Allen, Rick Damren, Dan 
Newman, Carol Johnson. 

In-person attendees: Town Manager Anthony Wilson, Carol Carothers, Jane Manson, 
Recreation Director Annie Dobos, Bert Languet, Kim Haggan, MacGregor Stocco, 
Michael Barrett. 

Remote attendees: Bruce Galouch, Town Clerk Mary Vogel, Nicholas Alexander, Dick 
Bourne, Kate Damren, Scott Damren, Facilities Maintenance Director Chris Dutill, Matt 
Fullerton of Waste Management, Michelle Fate, Rescue Chief Travis Burton, Firefighter 
Danielle Bedard, Lenny Reich, Penny Morrell. 

Ms. Jewell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Ms. Allen moved to open the meeting. Mr. Damren seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT. Bert Languet asked the Board for an opportunity at a future 
meeting to make a presentation about using a portion of the Town’s American 
Rescue Program Act (ARPA) federal funds on stormwater projects that would divert 
or improve stormwater that flows into the lake. Ms. Jewell suggested the first 
meeting in December would be available. 

2. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Approval of Oct. 19, 2021, and Oct. 20, 2021, Selectboard minutes. Mr. 

Newman moved approval of the Oct. 19, 2021, minutes. Ms. Allen seconded. 
Motion approved 4-0. Ms. Johnson abstained because she was not a member of 
the Board at the time. Ms. Allen moved approval of the Oct. 20, 2021, minutes. 
Mr. Newman seconded. Motion approved 4-0. Ms. Johnson abstained because 
she was not a member of the Board at the time.  

B. Discussion and consideration of 2022 Town Meeting. Ms. Jewell moved to hold 
a traditional bifurcated town meeting in 2022. Mr. Newman seconded. The 
motion failed 2-3, with Ms. Allen, Mr. Damren and Ms. Johnson opposing. Ms. 
Allen moved to conduct the 2022 town meeting by secret ballot. Mr. Damren 
seconded. Motion approved 3-2, with Ms. Jewell and Mr. Newman opposing. The 
Board also agreed to include an article on the town meeting warrant asking 

https://youtu.be/Tca1dsbxAEo


 
voters whether they would prefer to use a secret ballot or have a bifurcated town 
meeting in future years.  

3. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consideration of appointments: 

1. Sue Bradshaw – Senior Resources Committee. Mrs. Bradshaw was unable to 
attend so Ms. Jewell moved to table. Mr. Newman seconded. Motion 
approved 5-0. 

2. Kim Haggan – Senior Resources Committee. Ms. Jewell moved to approve. 
Mr. Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

3. Travis Burton – alternate Addressing Officer. Mr. Damren moved approval. 
Mr. Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

4. Danielle Bedard – alternate Addressing Officer. Mr. Damren moved approval. 
Mr. Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

5. Annie Dobos – Recreation Director. Ms. Jewell moved to approve. Ms. Allen 
seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

B. Discussion and consideration of recommendations from the First-Responders 
Memorial Group. Following a discussion of possible locations, which will be 
determined at a later date, MacGregor Stocco asked the Selectboard to place an 
article on the town meeting warrant that would authorize an amount from the 
Town not to exceed $12,000 for the memorial. Ms. Jewell moved to place an 
article on the 2022 town warrant to raise and/or appropriate an amount not to 
exceed $12,000 for a first-responders memorial. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion 
approved 5-0.  

C. Discussion and consideration of a Request for Proposals for a compactor 
container. Ms. Jewell moved to approve the RFP as recommended from the 
Transfer Station Committee. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

D. Discussion and consideration of a concrete slab for the maintenance garage 
addition. Ms. Jewell moved to approve a quote of $9,800 from Precision 
Concrete Floors. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

E. Discussion of Town refunds. In response to concerns raised by two citizens 
whose yoga classes were cancelled during the pandemic and who requested 
refunds more than a year later, the Board asked the Recreation Department to 
search for yoga class attendance records. After learning more, the Board 
indicated it would consider a policy at a future date.  

F. Discussion and consideration of a flat-fee contract for legal services. Mr. 
Damren moved approval of the year-long agreement with Bernstein Shur. Mr. 
Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

G. Consideration of property tax abatements: 
1. Abatement 21-07, Map 13, Lot 65 – $292.22. Ms. Jewell moved approval. Ms. 

Allen seconded. Motion approved 4-0. Mr. Newman abstained; as a state 
representative, he is not eligible to serve as an assessor.  



 
2. Abatement 20-08, Map 8, Lot 13A-2 – $575.21. Ms. Jewell moved approval. 

Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 4-0. Mr. Newman abstained; as a state 
representative, he is not eligible to serve as an assessor. Abatement 19-10, 
Map 8, Lot 13A-2 – $575.21. Ms. Jewell moved approval. Mr. Damren 
seconded. Motion approved 4-0. Mr. Newman abstained; as a state 
representative, he is not eligible to serve as an assessor.  

H. Consideration of a moratorium on subdivision, solar, wind and telecommunication 
permit applications, and of calling a special town meeting for Nov. 16, 2021. 
Ms. Jewell moved approval. Mr. Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

4. WARRANT. Ms. Allen moved approval of warrant 134 in the amount of $650,910.53. 
Mr. Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

5. TOWN MANAGER REPORT. After seeking guidance from the Board, the town 
manager was told to ask the Planning Board to craft a full set of regulations related 
to commercial solar arrays for amending the Commercial Development Review 
Ordinance. The town manager also asked the Board to consult their calendars for a 
budget workshop the first week of December.  

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) – Personnel  
Ms. Allen moved to exit open session at 9:28 p.m. Mr. Newman seconded. Motion 
approved 5-0. 
Ms. Allen moved to enter executive session at 9:34 p.m. Mr. Newman seconded. 
Motion approved 5-0. 
Mr. Newman moved to exit executive session at 9:52 p.m. Ms. Allen seconded. 
Motion approved 5-0. 
Ms. Allen moved to re-enter executive session and adjourn at 9:52 p.m. Mr. 
Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: Nov. 16, 2021 

Re: Committee applications 

 

The attached policy incorporates the suggestion of Budget Committee chair Gary 
Mahler, which the Selectboard received at its Nov. 9 meeting; the new language 
is underscored. Some boards, including the Board of Parks & Recreation, 
already adhere to this practice.  

If the Selectboard were to adopt this policy, vacancies would be promoted on the 
Town’s website, on its Facebook page, on the corkboard in the Town Office 
vestibule, and on one or more of the Town’s marquees. Committee vacancies 
have also been promoted in recent editions of the Town’s newsletter, which are 
produced three or four times per year.  

We currently have openings on:  

• Board of Appeals (1 alternate)  
• Assessment Review (1) 
• Budget Committee (1) 
• Communications Committee (1) 
• Roads Committee (2) 
• Board of Parks & Recreation (5) 
• Planning Board (1 alternate)  



 

TOWN OF BELGRADE 
COMMITTEE APPLICATION POLICY 

Vacancies on Town boards and committees will be promoted for a minimum of 
two weeks, during which applications to serve will be accepted. The means of 
promoting the vacancy will include, but not be limited to, posting on the Town’s 
website and on its Facebook page, posting on the corkboards in the Town Office 
and in any other appropriate Town facility (ex. Library, Center for All Seasons), 
on the marquee(s) of the Town Office and any other appropriate facility, and, 
depending on the timing of the vacancy, in the Town newsletter.  

After the two-week period, the applications received will be forwarded to the 
board or committee for its review and recommendation to the Board of 
Selectpersons. The Selectboard will at its next available meeting consider the 
committee’s recommendation. The Selectboard reserves the right to decline to 
approve an appointment. 

Should a vacancy continue, the open board/committee seat will continue to be 
promoted until the Selectboard approves an appointee.  

 

This policy was adopted on Nov. 16, 2021, by the Belgrade Board of 
Selectpersons.  

 

 

_______________________  _______________________ 
Melanie Jewell, Chair   Rick Damren, Vice Chair 

 

 

 

_______________________  _______________________ 
Dan Newman, Selectperson  Barbara Allen, Selectperson 

 

 

 

_______________________ 
Carol Johnson, Selectperson   









 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: Nov. 16, 2021 

Re: Short-term rentals 

 

Resident Paul Lessard requested to speak to the Board of Selectpersons about 

short-term rentals. Mr. Lessard wrote, “I have looked around to seek information 

about laws governing STRs, Short Term Rentals and short term rental zoning 

ordinances. These STRs have happened more frequently as time passes across 

the country during the past 10 years, especially in cities and in tourist areas.  

“Here are some things that I have found that might help the Planners and 

Selectmen with their discussion about creating ordinances to control where these 

uses are permitted and what standards should be applied, including what fees to 

be collected by the local community as well as the State level in sales and 

income taxes. 

• https://www.ncsl.org/Portals/1/Documents/legisbriefs/2018/September/Sh

ortRentals_Sep2018_35_v01.pdf 

• https://www.hostfully.com/regulations/maine/ 

• https://www.useful-community-development.org/short-term-rental-

zoning.html 

• https://www.capeelizabeth.com/ShortTermRentalOrdinanceStandards 

• https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/code-enforcement-

planning/pages/short-term-rentals 

 

(Printouts from these links are attached.)  

Mr. Lessard continued, “It is important in Belgrade, a tourist destination, that 

controls be put in place to protect the current owners of existing cottages from 

being overrun by STRs and from their negative impact on the residents of the 

community.” 

Mr. Lessard will be at the meeting to offer testimony and answer questions. 

https://www.ncsl.org/Portals/1/Documents/legisbriefs/2018/September/ShortRentals_Sep2018_35_v01.pdf
https://www.ncsl.org/Portals/1/Documents/legisbriefs/2018/September/ShortRentals_Sep2018_35_v01.pdf
https://www.hostfully.com/regulations/maine/
https://www.useful-community-development.org/short-term-rental-zoning.html
https://www.useful-community-development.org/short-term-rental-zoning.html
https://www.capeelizabeth.com/ShortTermRentalOrdinanceStandards
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/code-enforcement-planning/pages/short-term-rentals
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/code-enforcement-planning/pages/short-term-rentals


















ARTICLE I
Short-Term Rentals
[Adopted 6-8-2021]

§ 116-1. Purpose.

The purpose of this article is to require the disclosure and licensing of short-term rentals
operated within the Town of Kennebunkport. Furthermore, this article is intended to
ensure that residential neighborhoods are not unduly impacted by the operation of short-
term rentals within the Town. This will be accomplished by a licensing program that
enables the Town to monitor and track the proliferation of short-term rentals within its
borders, includes modest performance standards intended to protect property owners,
renters, and neighbors along with limits to the numbers of short-term rentals within the
community. Due to the historic nature and long-standing tradition of short-term rentals
within the Goose Rocks Beach neighborhood, this limited area will not be subject to
licensing limits; it will, however, still be subject to all other requirements in this article.

§ 116-2. Applicability.

§ 116-3. Definitions.

As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

ADVERTISING — Any form of communication for marketing that is used to
encourage, persuade or manipulate viewers, readers or listeners into contracting for
goods and/or services as may be viewed through various media, including, but not
limited to, newspapers, magazines, flyers, handbills, television commercials, radio,
signage, direct mail, websites or text messages.

DWELLING UNIT — One or more rooms arranged for complete, independent
housekeeping purposes with space for living and sleeping; space or facilities for eating
or cooking; and provisions for sanitation. For purposes of this article, recreational

A. Permitted short-term rentals. Legally existing residential dwelling units may be
used as short-term rentals upon the issuance of a short-term rental license for the
premises in accordance with the requirements of this article.

B. Prohibited short-term rentals. No person may offer for rent, operate, or otherwise
use any dwelling unit in the Town of Kennebunkport for short-term rentals if:

(1) Such person has not secured or maintained a valid short-term rental license for
the premises; or

(2) The accommodations are an accessory apartment constructed or permitted
after November 3, 2009, or a recreational vehicle, trailer or tent.

C. Lodging establishments exempt. The following lodging establishment uses are
exempt from the licensing requirements and standards of this article: hotels, motels,
bed-and-breakfasts, inns, seasonal rental accommodation complexes, and
residential rental accommodations.

§ 116-1 § 116-3

:1



vehicles are not considered dwelling units.

GOOD NEIGHBOR GUIDELINES — A document prepared by the Town that
summarizes the general rules of conduct, consideration, and respect, including, without
limitation, provisions pertaining to the use and occupancy of a dwelling unit used or
occupied as a short-term rental.

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH NEIGHBORHOOD — See the area defined on Exhibit A.1

OWNER — An individual person or persons or an entity that is the owner of record of
real property as documented by deed or other document evidencing ownership recorded
at the York County Registry of Deeds.

RESIDENTIAL RENTAL ACCOMMODATIONS — The permitted accessory use of
no more than two bedrooms in a legally existing dwelling or dwelling unit. This dwelling
unit shall be an owner-occupied dwelling. Rooms rented may be for either short-term
or long-term rental to a roomer who may be unrelated to the owner or occupant of the
unit. Individual rooms shall be rented no more than once per week. For purposes of this
definition, a "week" shall be defined as Monday through Sunday.

SEASONAL RENTAL ACCOMMODATION COMPLEX — A lodging business
located on one parcel of land that makes a room, a group of rooms, and/or cottages
available for a tenancy of less than 30 days on a seasonal basis.

SHORT-TERM RENTAL — The use, control, management or operation of a legally
existing residential dwelling unit offered for rent for transient occupancy for dwelling,
sleeping or lodging purposes by short-term rental guests for a tenancy of less than 30
consecutive days, for compensation, directly or indirectly, excluding motels, hotels, bed-
and-breakfasts, inns, seasonal rental accommodation complexes, and residential rental
accommodations.

SHORT-TERM RENTAL GUEST — Any person who rents, licenses, occupies or has
the right to occupy a dwelling unit for less than 30 consecutive days.

§ 116-4. General requirements.

A. License required: No short-term rental shall be advertised, rented, or operated
without first obtaining a short-term rental license. A short-term rental license shall
be valid for the calendar year for which the license is issued. The property must
remain in compliance with the short-term rental license for the calendar year in
which the license is issued.

(1) Short-term rental license renewal. Short-term rental licenses shall expire on
December 31 of each calendar year, and short-term rental license holders may
renew such license by submitting a renewal application, via a renewal process
established by the Town. After the effective date of this article, any duly
licensed short-term rental may continue operating as long as the license is
current and renewed on or before the annual renewal deadline established by
the Town. If the license is not renewed within the prescribed time frame, the

1. Editor's Note: Said map is on file in the Town offices.

§ 116-3 § 116-4

:2



license expires, and this protection clause no longer applies. Any renewal
application received after the advertised deadline for submission shall be
considered late and deemed a new application.

(2) The Board of Selectmen shall establish fees for the licensure of short-term
rentals. Licensing fees for short-term rentals shall be assessed based upon the
following criteria:

(a) Tier I: Short-term rentals with zero to three bedrooms.

(b) Tier II: Short-term rentals with four or more bedrooms.

B. Nontransferability.

(1) Short-term rental licenses issued under this article shall not be transferable to
a new owner or location. Any change of ownership shall require a new license,
except transfers of the real estate and related license in a permitted transfer. A
"permitted transfer" is a transfer of the subject real estate and the related
license to a permitted transferee. A "permitted transferee" includes 1) another
current owner of the subject real estate; 2) the spouse, child(ren) and/or
grandchild(ren) of a current owner; 3) a trust for the benefit of a current owner,
a current owner's spouse, a current owner's child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren)
of a current owner; or 4) for estate planning purposes, a trust, limited-liability
company (LLC), corporation or other entity, as long as the beneficiaries of the
trust or owners of the entity, as applicable, are a current owner, a current
owner's spouse, a current owner's child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a
current owner. In the case of a transfer to a permitted transferee, the permitted
transferee shall become a "licensee" and an "owner," and the definition of
"permitted transferee" shall apply to the new licensee/owner.

(2) Licensees/owners shall be required to certify that they comply with the
provisions of this section annually and that they have not engaged in any
transfers, or been transferees in any transfers, that are not permitted transfers.
See § 116-6C herein.

(3) Licenses are limited to the dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall
not be transferable to a different dwelling unit.

C. Advertising. It shall be unlawful to advertise occupancy or use of a short-term rental
that has not been licensed. Licensed short-term rentals in good standing may
advertise for beyond the current licensing year. For the purposes of this section, the
term "advertise" shall mean any form of communication for marketing that is used
to encourage, persuade, or manipulate viewers, readers or listeners into contracting
for goods and/or services as may be viewed through various media included, but
not limited to, newspapers, magazines, flyers, handbills, television commercials,
radio, signage, direct mail, websites or text messages. The short-term rental
advertising must be consistent with the terms of the short-term rental license, and
all advertisements of the short-term rental must include the current short-term rental
license number.

§ 116-4 § 116-4

:3



§ 116-5. Review procedure.

Issuance procedure:

D. Registration record. The short-term rental owner must a) maintain accurate, up-to-
date records of all rental transactions involving the short-term rental, including the
number of tenants and the length of their stays, and upcoming reservations; and b)
present said information to Town inspection officials upon request. Failure of the
short-term rental owner to provide this information within five business days of a
Town request for the same shall be considered a violation of this section.

E. Notice. The short-term rental license holder must post in plain sight near the
entrance to the short-term rental a notice that identifies the short-term rental license
number, and the name, address, phone number(s), and email address of the owner
of the short-term rental, and/or the owner's local contact person. Such notice may
be posted in plain sight in the interior of the short-term rental. The short-term rental
license holder shall also post the license provided by the Town.

A. Application submission; completeness. Short-term rental license applications shall
be submitted to the Town Clerk. Applications for licenses for the upcoming
calendar year may be submitted beginning in October of the previous license year.
The Town Clerk, or the Town Clerk's designee, shall review all applications for
completeness and accuracy and in the order that they were received.

B. Application, license fee. The Town Clerk shall provide a short-term rental
application to be completed by the applicant and submitted to the Town Clerk
accompanied by the short-term rental license fee as established by the Board of
Selectmen. The short-term rental application shall include a nonexclusive checklist
of code requirements that the property owner shall demonstrate compliance with.

C. Town Clerk authority. The Town Clerk shall have the authority to issue a short-term
rental license. The Town Clerk, or the Town Clerk's designee, shall determine if the
application has been properly completed before any license is issued.

D. Inspection.

(1) Anytime that a short-term rental application is submitted for a property, the
short-term rental applicant shall certify on the short-term rental application
that the proposed short-term rental property complies with the short-term
rental standards in § 116-7, and with Building Code requirements.

(2) The Code Enforcement Officer shall inspect the licensed premises once every
five years, to determine compliance with the short-term standards in § 116-7.

E. Transitional provisions for licensing of preexisting short-term rentals. Persons or
entities who operated a legally existing residential dwelling unit as a short-term
rental and who received reservations for short-term rentals at the same premises
prior to the effective date of this article shall be required to obtain a short-term
rental license for said premises by submitting an application to the Town Clerk by
the advertised date, which application must contain an affidavit or other sworn

§ 116-4 § 116-5

:4



§ 116-6. Submission requirements.

The short-term rental license application shall include the following information:

§ 116-7. Standards.

The Town Clerk shall issue a short-term rental license upon the applicant satisfying the
above requirements if the following standards are met:

statement by the owner, along with documented evidence, certifying that the
premises were previously used for short-term rental use by one or more tenants for
a period of less than 30 consecutive days per tenancy and for at least 14 total days
in a calendar year in any one of the following years: 2019, 2020, or 2021.

(1) Upon review and approval of a timely application submitted for a license
containing sufficient evidence of previous short-term rental use as required
above, the Town Clerk shall issue a license for each such premises, without
the need for a prior inspection of said premises by the Code Enforcement
Officer or designee as is otherwise required in § 116-5D.

F. Issuance. If the Town Clerk, or the Town Clerk's designee, in consultation with the
Code Enforcement Officer, determines that the proposed short-term rental
application complies with the short-term rental standards, the Town Clerk shall
issue the applicant a short-term rental license in accordance with the limits
established in § 116-9 below.

A. Location. The street address and map/block/lot number of the short-term rental
property.

B. Contact person/owner responsibility. The name of the owner of the short-term
rental property and contact information, including address and telephone number.
If the owner is anything other than a natural person, then the following information
must also be included: the name of each individual person who has an ownership
interest in any entity that is the record owner, including, without limitation, all
beneficiaries of any trust, and all members and shareholders of a limited-liability
company, corporation or other entity. In addition, if someone other than the owner
is acting as the local contact person, contact information for that person shall also
be provided. Regardless of who enters the short-term rental agreement, or who may
be designated as the owner's contact person, the property owner shall be responsible
for compliance with article provisions.

C. For renewal applications, licensees/owners shall be required to certify annually that
they have not engaged in any transfers of the licensed premises, or been transferees
in any transfers, that are not permitted transfers under § 116-4B of this article.

D. All information needed to demonstrate compliance with the standards listed below.

A. Code compliance. An applicant's property, without limitation, shall comply with the
following building safety requirements.

§ 116-5 § 116-7

:5



(1) Smoke alarms. Smoke alarms shall be installed in the following locations:

(a) In each bedroom.

(b) Outside each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the
bedrooms.

(c) On each additional story of the dwelling, including basements and
habitable attics.

(2) Carbon monoxide alarms. If a house has an attached garage or a fuel-fired
appliance, a carbon monoxide alarm shall be installed outside each bedroom
in the immediate vicinity of the bedrooms.

(3) Portable fire extinguishers. At least one portable fire extinguisher shall be
mounted in a prominent location. One size/type 2/A is required or two size/
type 1/A extinguishers.

B. The applicant shall provide floor plans of the dwelling unit that shows the location
of the alarms and fire extinguisher(s).

C. Sanitary waste disposal. The applicant shall submit information demonstrating that
adequate sanitary waste disposal is available in compliance with the Maine
Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules or that the property is served by public
sewer. This shall include the total number of bedrooms included in the property,
any additional sleeping space, and the total number of tenants that the property
accommodates. The total number of tenants used to determine adequacy of sanitary
waste disposal shall not be less than the total number of tenants that the property is
advertised to accommodate. For the purpose of evaluating the adequacy of a
subsurface disposal system, every two tenants shall be equivalent to one bedroom.

D. Parking. The applicant shall include a depiction designating parking spaces that will
be provided for tenants and guests on the same lot where the short-term rental is
located. Guest parking at the short-term rental shall occur in parking spaces
designated by the applicant, and the number of guest vehicles allowed at the short-
term rental shall be limited to the number of on-site parking spaces designated by
the applicant. Garage parking spaces not allowed for tenant use shall not be used to
meet the short-term rental parking requirement. Tenants and guests of short-term
rentals are prohibited from parking in a manner that impedes access by emergency
vehicles to the property or any other dwelling in the neighborhood.

E. Good neighbor guidelines.

F. Occupancy limits. The maximum tenant occupancy of a short-term rental shall be
limited to no more than two tenants per bedroom, plus two additional tenants total
for the entire dwelling unit. By way of example, the maximum tenant capacity for
a three-bedroom dwelling short-term rental is eight tenants (i.e., three bedrooms
multiplied by two tenants, plus an additional two tenants, for a total of eight).

§ 116-7 § 116-8

:6



§ 116-8. Suspension and revocation of license.

A license for a short-term rental may be conditioned, suspended, or revoked by the
Board of Selectmen after a public hearing if the Board of Selectmen determine that a
violation of this article, any applicable statute, ordinance, or regulation, or short-term
rental license certification, condition, or criteria has occurred.

§ 116-9. Limitations on annual licenses for short-term rental units.

The Town Clerk shall issue short-term rental licenses on an annual basis. The total
number of licenses issued in each calendar year shall be set annually by the Board of

A. Violations of this article. Violations of this article include, but are not limited to,
the following:

(1) Providing false or misleading information on an application, or renewal
application, for a short-term rental license;

(2) Failure to provide the registration records as provided in § 116-4D within five
business days of a Town request for such records;

(3) Failure to comply with the parking provisions of § 116-7D of this article;

(4) Failure to comply with the rental occupancy limits of § 116-7F of this article;

(5) Failure to acquire and/or display the required short-term rental license number
or include the license number in any advertising of the licensed premises;

(6) Violation of any short-term rental license certification, condition, or criteria;

(7) Violation of any statute, ordinance, or regulation applicable to the short-term
rental property.

B. Complaints concerning short-term rentals. The Code Enforcement Officer shall
establish and maintain a log of all complaints for each short-term rental received
and substantiated by the Town. The Code Enforcement Officer shall seek the
correction of all substantiated complaints by the short-term rental license holder.

C. Suspension or revocation of license. When, in the judgement of the Code
Enforcement Officer, the nature and/or number of complaints warrants further
review of the short-term rental license, the Code Enforcement Officer shall provide
a report of the same to the Board of Selectmen for its consideration. The Board of
Selectmen may condition, suspend, or revoke a short-term rental license, following
a public hearing, on the basis of the licensee's noncompliance with this article, any
applicable law, ordinance, or regulation, or short-term rental license certification,
condition, or criteria.

D. Appeal. Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Board of Selectmen to suspend
or revoke a short-term rental license may appeal the decision of the Board of
Selectmen to Superior Court, pursuant to Maine Rule of Civil Procedure 80B,
within 30 days of the Board of Selectmen's decision.

§ 116-8 § 116-9

:7



Selectmen. The limitation on the total number of licenses set by the Board of Selectmen
shall first go into effect on January 1, 2023.

§ 116-10. Violations and penalties; enforcement.

§ 116-11. Additional regulations.

The Board of Selectmen may adopt regulations implementing the provisions of this
article.

A. Formula. The total number of licenses issued in each calendar year shall be set by
the Board of Selectmen annually according to a formula based in part upon a
percentage of the total number of residential dwelling units in the Town of
Kennebunkport.

B. Goose Rocks Beach Neighborhood. No short-term rental located in the Goose
Rocks Beach Neighborhood (as depicted on the attached map2) shall be advertised,
rented, or operated as a short-term rental without first obtaining a short-term rental
license. Licensed short-term rentals located in the Goose Rocks Beach
Neighborhood (as depicted on the attached map) shall not be counted towards the
total number of short-term rental licenses to be set annually by the Board of
Selectmen under § 116-9A herein, and to be issued on an annual basis thereafter by
the Town.

C. Effective date. This article and all the licensing standards contained herein shall go
into effect on January 1, 2022.

A. In the event the owner or owner's short-term rental guests violate this article or the
terms and conditions of the license, the Town, in addition to the suspension or
revocation of the then-current license pursuant to § 116-8 above, may also prohibit
the owner from licensing the dwelling unit for 12 months following the current
licensing expiration date, after which the owner may submit a new application for
licensure.

B. Violations shall also be subject to fines and penalties as set forth in this section and
in a penalty schedule established by the Board of Selectmen.

C. Any such fines or penalties may be in addition to any suspension or revocation
imposed in accordance with the provisions of § 116-8 of this article.

D. The Town may institute or cause to be instituted any and all actions, legal or
equitable, that may be appropriate or necessary for the enforcement of the
provisions of this article. In any court action, the Town may seek injunctive relief
in addition to or instead of fines/penalties. The Town shall be entitled to recover its
costs of enforcement, including its reasonable attorneys' fees.

2. Editor's Note: Said map is on file in the Town offices.

§ 116-9 § 116-11

:8



���������������	
 
����	�������������������

���������������������������� ������������� ��!

"#$�%&'&$�()�*'+,$�-$./+-$%�&#'&�%#(-&0&$-1�-$,&'2�(3$-'&(-%4�#(1$(5,$-%4�(-�',6(,$�5#(�7(22$7&%�-$,&%&#$�(5,$-4�)(-�'�8/%+,$%%�(-�$9$,�7'%/'2264�1/%&�-$:+%&$-�)(-�',;�7(22$7&�'�<=�>'7'&+(,�?@'%/'2A�B$,&'2�"';($%�,(&�#'9$�&(�8$�';9$-&+%$;�+,�(-;$-�)(-�&#+%�&'C�&(�'3326D�"#$-$�'-$�%(1$�$C$13&+(,%E@'%/'2�-$,&'2%�)(-�)$5$-�&#',�FG�,+:#&%�+,�'�6$'-4�&#+%�'332+$%�)(-�(5,$-%�5#(�-$,&�&#$1%$29$%D�H(-�'7(22$7&$;�(,�86�',�':$,&�?(-�(,�8$#'2)�()�&#$�(5,$-A4�1/%&�7(22$7&�',;�-$1+&�'33-(3-+'&$�&'C$%4�,(�1'&&&+1$�&#$�3-(3$-&6�+%�-$,&$;DI77/3',76�)(-�JK�;'6%�(-�1(-$DL+-8,8�5+22�7(22$7&�',;�-$1+&�%'2$%�&'C�(,�8$#'2)�()�&#$�(5,$-�+,�&#$�'1(/,&�()�M=�()�&#$�2+%&$;�-$,&',6�'332+7'82$�72$',+,:�(-�8((N+,:�)$$%D
O#(-&0&$-1�-$,&'2�-$:/2'&+(,%�'-$�+,�'�7(,%&',&�%&'&$�()�7#',:$D�"#$�8$2(5�-$%(/-7$�+%�/3;'&$;�5#$,�3+&�%#(/2;�,(&�8$�&'N$,�'%�2$:'2�';9+7$D�P&�+%�7-+&+7'2�&#'&�6(/�7(,%/2&�5+&#�6(/-�2(7'2�2'56$-�&(�$,%/-$�6(/&#$�,$7$%%'-6�%&$3%�&(�N$$3�6(/-�8/%+,$%%�%')$�',;�2$:'2DQ
RRR

S-(;/7&%T U$1( P,&$:-'&+(,% S'-&,$-% S-+7+,:T V$'-,+,:T



���������������	
 
����	�������������������

���������������������������� ������������� ��!

"�#$%�&'((�)*+�,$-$#.(/�&$$#�'#.,012-$1�'#�.)$�+.*.$�03�4*'#$5�%)'-)�-*((+�.0�6,0)'&'.�.0%#+�*#1�-'.'$+�3,0+)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*(+9�:)$�'#.,012-.'0#�03�.)'+�&'((�)*+�+6*,;$1�82-)�1$&*.$9�:)$,$�'+�*�-0#-$,#�%'.)�.)$�,'+.$,8�,$#.*(+�0--26/'#<�*�<,0%'#<�60,.'0#�03�*=*'(*&($�,$#.*(�6,06$,.'$+�.),02<)02.�.)$�+.*.$9:)'+�(*-;�03�*=*'(*&($�6,06$,.'$+�)*+�1,'=$#�,$#.+�)'<)$,�*#1�4*'#$�'+�#0%�-0#+'1$,$1�0#$�03�.)$�80+.�$>8*,;$.+�'#�.)$�-02#.,/9�?'.)�.)$�,'+'#<�-0+.�03�('='#<5�('+.'#<�*�,008�0,�*#�'#=$+.8$#.�6,06$,./�30,�,$#.�)*+-,2-'*(�'#-08$�+02,-$�30,�8*#/�0%#$,+�*-,0++�.)$�+.*.$9:)$�#$%�&'((�.0�,$+.,'-.�.)$�&*##'#<�03�+)0,.�.$,8�,$#.*(+�%*+�6,060+$1�.0�-0#.,0(�82#'-'6*('.'$+�3,08�'#.0=$,(/�,$+.,'-.'=$�&*#+�0#�+)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*(+�*#1�.0�26)0(1�.)$�@6$,+0#*(A�6,06$,./�,'<).+�03�0%#$,+9�:)$'#.,012-$1�'#�,$+60#+$�.0�-$,.*'#�82#'-'6*('.'$+�'++2'#<�32((�+)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*(�&*#+�'#�,$+'1$#.'*(�#$'<)&0-*2+'#<�*�(0++�03�'#-08$9
B0-;(*#1�*((0%+�+)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*(+�%'.)�.)$�6,06$,�6$,8'.+�@B0-;(*#1�C,1'#*#-$�7�D)6�EF�7�G$-.'0#�HA9C#(/�+'#<($73*8'(/5�82(.'73*8'(/�0,�8'>$172+$�6,06$,.'$+�*,$�6$,8'..$19�G)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*(+�*,$�#0.�6*#/�0.)$,�+.,2-.2,$�@.,*'($,5�.$#.5�*--$++0,/�1%$(('#<�2#'.5�+$6*,*.$�+.,2-.2,$5�$.-9A5�%'.)02.�6$,8'++'0#�B0-;(*#1�I0#'#<�J�K(*##'#<�D088'++'0#9G)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*(�*66('-*.'0#�82+.�&$�L($1�%'.)�.)$�B0-;(*#1�D01$�M#30,-$8$#.�03L-$5�0#$�*66('-*2#'.9:)$�*66('-*.'0#�%'((�,$N2',$�*�3$$�03�OEPP9PP�.0�&$�6*'1�6$,�+)0,.�.$,8�,$#.*(�2#'.9�G)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*G)0,.7.$,8�,$#.*(+�*,$�6$,8'..$1�'#�+'#<($73*8'(/5�102&($73*8'(/�*#1�-$,.*'#�*6*,.8$#.�&2'(1'#<+�%'.)�.),$<'+.,*.'0#9�C%#$,+�*#1�0%#$,�*<$#.+�82+.�+2&8'.�'#30,8*.'0#�0#�$=$,/�,$#.*(�.)$/�0%#�0,�8*#*<$5�*+30,�6,06$,�'#+6$-.'0#�.),02<)�.)$�-'./9�Q$,$�'+�*#�0=$,='$%G)0,.�.$,8�,$#.*(+�82+.�&$�,$<'+.$,$1�0#�*#�*##2*(�&*+'+�%'.)�.)$�.0%#�03�R*,�Q*,&0,9
SSSS

TK,012-.+U V$80 W#.$<,*.'0#+ K*,.#$,+ K,'-'#<U X$*,#'#<U



���������������	
 
����	�������������������

���������������������������� ������������� ��!

"#�$%&'%�($�$)(*+#�*�%',+-(%*(+$#�.*%&/�*#�*001+.*(+$#�23-(�)'�41'&�*#&�5''�0*+&�6+(7�(7'�($6#�$5�8*%(7'�0%$0'%(9�6+11�#''&�($�)'�+#-0'.('&�)9�(7'�:+%'�;7+'5�*#&�;$&'�<#5$%.'2'#(�=54.'%>?7'�*00%$@'&�%',+-(%*(+$#�.*%&�23-(�)'�0$-('&�+#�(7'�-7$%(�('%2�%'#(*1�0%$0'%(9�5$%�,3'-(-�($�-''>?7'�A'6+-($#�B%'*�C3)1+.�D'*1(7�;$22+((''�,*(7'%'&�*#�*&E7$.�%'#(*1�%',+-(%*(+$#�.$22+((''�(7*(�7*-�30%$.'--�$5�%'-'*%.7+#,�(7'�.%'*(+$#�$5�-7$%(E('%2�%'#(*1�%',31*(+$#->�?7'�5311�%'.$22'#&'&�*.(+$#�01*#�6*#&�+-�-(+11�*6*+(+#,�*00%$@*1>�F#&'%�(7'�0%$0$-'&�%',31*(+$#-/�(7'�5$11$6+#,�*001+'-�G6+(7�*00%$@*1HIJ7$%(�('%2�%'#(*1�%',+-(%*(+$#�6+11�)'�%'K3+%'&�6+(7�(7'�($6#�$5�A'6+-($#>?7'%'�6+11�)'�*�#$#E%'53#&*)1'�5''�+#@$1@'&/�(7'�*2$3#(�+-�($�)'�&'('%2+#'&�)9�A'6+-($#�;+(9�;$3#=#19�231(+E5*2+19�*#&�2+L'&E3-'�0%$0'%(+'-�6+11�)'�0'%2+(('&>B001+.*(+$#-�23-(�)'�-3)2+(('&�)9�M319�N-(�$5�'*.7�9'*%�*#&�%'#'6'&�*##3*119>"5�(7'%'�*%'�*#9�.$#51+.(+#,�$%&+#*#.'-�+#@$1@+#,�-7$%(E('%2�%'#(*1�%',31*(+$#�*#&�'L+-(+#,�$%&+#*#.'$%&+#*#.'�+-�-(%+.('%�6+11�*0019>O'#(*1�3#+(-�6+11�)'�+#-0'.('&�+#�*#�$%,*#+P'&�$%�*-E#''&'&�)*-+->J7$%(E('%2�%'#(*1-�*%'�7'*@+19�%',31*('&�+#�(7'�.+(9�$5�C$%(1*#&>�=6#'%-�*#&�$6#'%�*,'#(-�23-(�-3)2+(�&+#5$%2*(+$#�$#�'@'%9�%'#(*1�(7'9�$6#�$%�2*#*,'/�*-�6'11�*-�*&7'%'�($�(7'�1$.*1�$%&+#*#.'�*#&�P$#+#,�1*6$@'%@+'6IC$%(1*#&�J7$%(�?'%2�O'#(*1�O'K3+%'2'#(-�C$%(1*#&�.+(9�+#-0'.($%-�6+11�+#-0'.(�(7'�0%$0'%(9�5$%�0%$.$&'�*#&�4%'�-*5'(9�.$201+*#.'>C$%(1*#&�%'-'%@'-�(7'�%+,7(�($�+#-0'.(�(7'�0%$0'%(9�*(�*#9�(+2'�*#&�%'K3'-(�%'#(*1�7+-($%9/�(%*#-*.(+$*-�30.$2+#,�)$$Q+#,-�*(�*#9�(+2'>=0'%*($%-�*#&�$6#'%-�7*@'�RS�7$3%-�($�%'019�($�*�%'K3'-(�)'5$%'�*�0'#*1(9�6+11�)'�+--3'&>J7$%(E('%2�%'#(*1�$0'%*($%-�23-(�%',+-('%�9'*%19�*#&�0*9�*�5''�5$%�'@'%9�3#+(>

TTTTTTTTTTTT

UC%$&3.(-V W'2$ "#(',%*(+$#- C*%(#'%- C%+.+#,V A'*%#+#,V



���������������	
 
����	�������������������

���������������������������� ������������� !�"

#$%$&'()�*+),�-$�)+-*.,,$/�-0�1'%+'20�3),�45�$6$20�0$'278.)94+%,)�'2$�455$2$/�:$2�+%.,�&.,;�'�*'<.*+*�45�=>?7??�.%�/.)94+%,)�:$2�+%.,7�@'<.*+*�45�A??�B499+:.$/�C42�D+%;4),$/EF�+%.,)�'2$�'((4&$/�,4�-$�2$G.),$2$/�.%�'�0$'2�4%�,;$�*'.%('%/7H24:$2,0�4&%$2)�*'0�2$G.),$2�+:�,4�I�);42,J,$2*�2$%,'()7K':�45�I�(.6.%G�):'9$)�9'%�-$�2$%,$/�.%�'%0�4%$�).%G($�4&%$2J499+:.$/�:24:$2,0�C,;.)�.%9(+/$)�-$/24)$:'2',$�):'9$)F7B4%J4&%$2J499+:.$/�94%/4*.%.+*)�'%/�).%G($J5'*.(0�;4*$)�*'0�%4,�-$�2$%,$/�);42,J,$2*7L;$%�2$G.),$2.%G�'%�4&%$2J499+:.$/�);42,�,$2*�2$%,'(M�4%(0�;4*$)�42�':'2,*$%,)�+)$/�')�:2.*'20�&.((�-$�:$2*.,,$/7@'<�45�,&4�G+$),)�:$2�-$/244*M�&.,;�4%(0�4%$�'//.,.4%'(�):'9$�'((4&$/�:$2�);42,�,$2*�2$%,'(�,;',�9499+:.$/�-0�'�*'<�45�,&4�'//.,.4%'(�G+$),)7N((�);42,�,$2*�2$%,'(�'/6$2,.)$*$%,)�*+),�.%9(+/$�,;$�9.,0J.))+$/�2$G+(',.4%�:$2*.,�2$G.),2',.4%�%+*+%.,�-+.(/.%G)�;'6$�,;$.2�4&%�(.*.,',.4%)O@'.%$�#$6$%+$�P$26.9$)@'.%$�P'($)�Q�R)$�S'<�#$G.),2',.4%

TTTTTTTT
UH24/+9,)V 8$*4 W%,$G2',.4%) H'2,%$2) H2.9.%GV X$'2%.%GV



�������������	�
� ������������������������
�������������� ���!�"�����#

��$#���%%%& #�� �'���� ���!'������$����&����#���'����'������'(�����&��� ��)

*+,-.�/0-1�203.45�6,3738�94:�;0*.-7<.5:�208=54.0>�,-�?,.�@ABC�DE�FGHBI�EG�IAGJE�EBJH�JBCEKL�MGCDCNOFGHHPCDEDBI�AKQB�EG�RBFDRB�GC�K�SGLDFT�EAKE�UEIEABDJ�ADIEGJT�KCR�DRBKLIV�WADI�DIIPB�DI�BISBFDKLLTLDXBLT�EG�KJDIB�YABJB�EGPJDIEI�GJ�K�EJKCIDBCESGSPLKEDGC�KJB�DCEBJBIEBR�DC�EBHSGJKJT�JBCEKLI�GZIDCNLB[ZKHDLT�JBIDRBCFBIO�YDEAGPE�EAB�GYCBJ\BDCN�GC�EAB�SJBHDIBIV�@DEA�EAB�JDIB�GZ�EAB�IAKJDCN�BFGCGHTO�GCLDCB\PIDCBIIBI�IPFA�KI�]DJ\C\�AKQB�HKRB�JBCEDCN�GPEK�AGHBO�GJ�̂PIE�K�JGGH�GJ�EYGO�KC�BKIT�GSEDGC�ZGJ�AGHBGYCBJI�DC�KJBKICGE�FGCIDRBJBR�BISBFDKLLT�EGPJDIETV�_G�EADI�SJG\LBH�DI�DCFJBKIDCN�DCZJB̀PBCFT�KCR�SGEBCEDKL�ZGJ�FGCEJGQBJITV�aZ�FGPJIB�DE�DI�CGE�K�CBY�DIIPB�YABJB�IBKIGCKL�EGPJDIH�DI�ADNAO�\PE�EABP̀BIEDGC�AKI�\BFGHB�CBYLT�JBLBQKCE�ZGJ�HKCT�EGYCI�KCR�FDEDBI�EAKEAKQB�CBQBJ�\BBC�IBBC�K�RBHKCR�ZGJ�IAGJE�EBJH�JBCEKLI�\BZGJB�CGYV��WADIKSSLDBI�EG�KJBKI�EAKE�KJB�CBKJ�EGPJDIE�KEEJKFEDGCI�DC�LKJNB�FDEDBIO�\PEYADFA�AKQB�CBQBJ�EAGPNAE�GZ�EABHIBLQBI�KI�EGPJDIE�RBIEDCKEDGCI�PCEDLCGYV��@AKE�YB�AKQB�EG�IKT�GC�EADI�SKNB�KSSLDBI�EG�EABIB�IAKJDCN�IBJQDFBIKI�YBLLV�

b,11=37.:c0d05,e103.c0f37.7,3b,11=37.:c0d05,e103.�g>04hb,11=37.:g1e-,d0103.i-,j0<.hb,11=37.:k-8437l4.7,3h;04=.7f<4.7,320>0d05,e103.i54337386,3738�m3>c0d05,e103.208=54.7,3n<,3,17<c0d05,e103.*=h.4734o50c0d05,e103.b,>0�n3p,-<0103.q,=h738b-710�i-0d03.7,3*e-4r5s7h7.,-�tum*7.0�g3p,*7.014emo,=.�vhb,3h=5.738

������w#�� ������ ���!�x�����$����vh0p=5b,11=37.:c0d05,e103. y

_AKJB��#�#���� #�#����z��#��#�������%���������{ �����������#��$�������&�|�����!�$����!& }~����������������



�������������	�
� ������������������������
�������������� ���!�"�����#

��$#���%%%& #�� �'���� ���!'������$����&����#���'����'������'(�����&��� ��)

*+,-.�,/-�01-2,34.�32�/5.67-6�,/8419/�,/-�:4.3.9�4863.5.;-<�=1,24>-,3>-2�5�2,5.6?574.-�4863.5.;-�>5@�=-�-.5;,-6�94A-8.3.9�,/-;4.63,34.2�1.6-8�B/3;/�21;/�5�75.6�12-�32�C-8>3,,-6D*+,-.�,/-�2/48,�,-8>�8-.,57�:4.3.9�C84A3234.2�6-E.-�2/48,�,-8>�52�7-22,/5.�FG�65@2D�H/-�25>-�;4.;-C,�>5@�=-�;577-6�,85.23-.,�8-.,572<�482/48,�,-8>�,85.23-.,�8-.,572D�I�+-B�-J5>C7-2�4+�5�2-524.57�:4.3.98-9175,34.�/5A-�=--.�+41.6�52�B-77<�3.�B/3;/�63++-8-.,�8-9175,34.2�5CC7@3+�,/-�8-.,57�32�+48�>48-�,/5.�FG�65@2�=1,�7-22�,/5.�KLG�48�24DM+�,/-�:4.3.9�4863.5.;-�32�B/-8-�2/48,�,-8>�8-.,572�58-�8-9175,-6<�,/-4863.5.;-�4+�;4182-�B377�2C-77�41,�B/3;/�:4.3.9�632,83;,2�5774B�21;/�512-D�N4>-,3>-2�4863.5.;-2�8-0138-�5�2C-;357�12-�C-8>3,<�B/3;/�121577@7-562�,4�,/-�25>-�7-A-7�4+�C1=73;�/-583.92�5.6�5;,34.�=@�,/-�94A-8.3.9=46@�-013A57-.,�,4�,/-�C84;-22�8-0138-6�+48�5�8-:4.3.9D�O-�,/3.P�,/-�=-2,�C84A3234.�B4176�=-�,4�8-0138-�5�;4.63,34.57�12-C-8>3,�3.�5.@�8-236-.,357�:4.3.9�632,83;,<�B/3;/�5774B2�,/-�;3,@<�,4B.2/3C<48�;41.,@�,4�5668-22�;4.;-8.2�5=41,�-J,85�A-/3;7-2<�/4182<�.432-<�,852/8->4A57<�+8-01-.;@�4+�,18.4A-8<�5.6�>48-D�H/-.�3+�,/-�74;57�94A-8.>-.,,/3.P2�,/5,�3,2�;4>C8-/-.23A-�C75.�8-0138-2�2,83;,�56/-8-.;-�,4�5�23.97-+5>37@�>46-7�3.�24>-�632,83;,2<�;4.63,34.2�21;/�52�5�>3.3>1>�.1>=-8�4+.39/,2Q�2,5@�+48�-5;/�,-.5.,<�5�>5J3>1>�.1>=-8�4+�.39/,2�4+�8-.,57�-5;/@-58<�5.6�,/-�C8-2-.;-�4+�,/-�4B.-8?4;;1C5.,�4.�C8->32-2�;5.�=-8-0138-6DRSTUVTWVX�YZW�R[ZWS�\]Ŵ�_]UST̀�aZUbUc�

dZUSTeS�fXg[TShX�i]jkWblTem�kZ̀bemnop̀bTS]�qbXèZXrW] stuvtwxyxxz{|}z~t�t��uz�}}|����v�t��}t�

N/58-��#�#���� #�#�������#��#�������%���������� �����������#��$�������&�������!�$����!& ������������������



�������������	�
� ������������������������
�������������� ���!�"�����#

��$#���%%%& #�� �'���� ���!'������$����&����#���'����'������'(�����&��� ��)

*+�,+-�./.+01�02.�34+5+6�4785+,+9.�5:�;5<.;-�04�:.0�=4702�:0,+8,78:�=47:2470�0.7>�7.+0,;�34+5+6?�@4A59:�7.6B;,0.8�>5620�5+9;B8.CD4:05+6�47�,/,5;,E5;50-�,0�02.�04F+�2,;;�4=�4+.�47�./.+�0F4�GHIJG94+0,90�A.7:4+:�F24�F5;;�E.�7.:A4+:5E;.�=47�2,+8;5+6�,+-A74E;.>:�02,0�,75:.�F502�02.�A74A.70-?�K.�025+<�025:�5:�02.�>4:05>A470,+0�7.6B;,054+1�,+8�4+.�02,0�:24B;8�E.�:07590;-�.+=479.8?L.MB57.>.+0:�=47�A74/585+6�4==N:07..0�A,7<5+6?��O+;.::�02.�B+50�5+MB.:054+�5:�/.7-�F.;;�:.7/.8�E-�ABE;59�07,+:A470,054+1�025:�5:�,>B:0?�@-A59,;;-�02.�7.MB57.>.+0�94B;8�E.�>.0�E-�.P07,�875/.F,-:A,9.1�EB0�5=�./.+�24>.4F+.7:�A,7<�4+�02.�:07..01�E.�MB50.�9,7.=B;04�5+9;B8.�,�:B=Q95.+0�7.6B;,054+?R45:.�,+8�+B5:,+9.�A74/5:54+:1�47�7.=.7.+9.�04�402.7�4785+,+9.:,887.::5+6�:B92�:50B,054+:?L.MB57.>.+0:�02,0�6,7E,6.�94;;.9054+�E.�>,5+0,5+.81�,+8�;5>505+602.�24B7:�E.=47.�,+8�,=0.7�94;;.9054+�F2.+�02.�6,7E,6.7.9.A0,9;.:�9,+�E.�5+�=74+0�4=�02.�24>.?S5+5>,;�7.MB57.8�:A,95+6�E.0F..+�:2470�0.7>�7.+0,;:?�TA,7059B;,7�5+0.7/,;�4=�=..0�>,-�E.�B:.8�04�,::B7.�02,0�,+�.+057.E;49<�84.:�+40�0B7+�5+04�,�:2470�0.7>�7.+0,;�85:07590?L.5+=479.>.+0�4=�02.�+47>,;�499BA,+9-�;5>50:�U+B>E.7�4=A.7:4+:�F24�>,-�;5/.�5+�02.�24>.V�=47�,�A,7059B;,7�34+5+6�85:07590,:�,AA;-5+6�,;:4�04�:2470�0.7>�7.+0,;�0.+,+0:?D744=�4=�948.�94>A;5,+9.1�Q7.�:,=.0-�>.,:B7.:1�,8.MB,0.�F,0.7,+8�:.F.7�:.7/59.1�47�402.7�B05;505.:�47�5+=7,:07B90B7.�02,0�>,-�E.4=�A,7059B;,7�94+9.7+?L.MB57.>.+0:�=47�+405=-5+6�+.562E47:1�47�./.+�=47�02.57,67..>.+0?W5>50,054+:�4+�02.�0B7+4/.7?�L.+05+6�04�:5P�85==.7.+0�0.+,+0:F5025+�,�>4+02�A74E,E;-�F4+X0�E.�,;;4F.8�5+�>,+-�A;,9.:?�@2.7.>,-�E.�,�>5+5>B>�:0,-1�A.72,A:�4=�,�F..<?W5>50,054+:�4+�A,7059B;,7�,7.,:�4=�02.�04F+�47�950-�F2.7.�:24700.7>�7.+0,;�.502.7�5:�+40�,;;4F.8�,0�,;;�47�5:�+40�7.:07590.8?�YB92:0,0.>.+0:�F5025+�,�34+5+6�4785+,+9.�F4B;8�,>4B+0�04.:0,E;5:25+6�,+�4/.7;,-�85:07590�A.70,5+5+6�ZB:0�04�02.�:BEZ.90�4=07,+:5.+0�7.+0,;:?*>A4:5054+�4=�,�:A.95,;�B:.�A.7>50�47�94+85054+,;�B:.�A.7>507.MB57.>.+01�,;;4F5+6�=47�:97B05+-�4=�02.�A,7059B;,7�=,90:�4=�,�:50.E.=47.�,;;4F5+6�:B92�,�B:.?Y2,7.��#�#���� #�#����[��#��#�������%���������\ �����������#��$�������&�]�����!�$����!& _̂̀aa�bcd�efcghcia



�������������	�
� ������������������������
�������������� ���!�"�����#

��$#���%%%& #�� �'���� ���!'������$����&����#���'����'������'(�����&��� )�*

+,�-./�0/1-23�4,�.45/6�,40�2�6.40-�-75/�76�14-�849/0/:�71�-./�;4171<40:71218/=�40�-./�-4>1�40�87-?�:4/6�14-�.29/�2�;4171<�40:71218/=�26/@202-/�32>�645/-75/6�76�/128-/:A�B04C2C3?�7-�>4D3:�:/23�>7-.�-./625/�-?@/6�4,�3757-2-7416�21:�0/ED70/5/1-6�:/6807C/:�2C49/=�2684167:/0/:�2@@04@072-/�21:�1/8/6620?�C?�-./�34823�<49/015/1-A+,�?4D0�-4>1�76�-20</-71<�0/<D32-7416�-4>20:�F70C1C�21:�7-6�845@/-7-406=?4D�52?�>21-�-4�:768D66�2�0/ED70/5/1-�-.2-�-./�CD73:71<�76�4>1/0G488D@7/:A�H.76�@0/9/1-6�-./�67-D2-741�4,�21�4,,G@0/576/6�4>1/0�>.4�52?C/�841687/1-74D6�CD-�14-�2>20/�4,�-71?�@04C3/56�-.2-�57<.-�2076/�/28.17<.-A�I/-�7-�2364�2334>6�.45/4>1/06�>7-.�@3/1-?�4,�6@28/�21:�@20J71<82@2C737-?�-4�C/�2C3/�-4�/201�645/�/K-02�71845/�71�2�5211/0�0/32-79/3?.2053/66�-4�-./�1/7<.C40.44:AF�1D5C/0�4,�LD04@/21�87-7/6=�3/:�C?�B2076=�.29/�2:4@-/:�2�0/<76-02-741@048/66�,40�-./�6.40-�-/05�0/1-236=�6718/�@0740�-4�-./�378/1671<0/ED70/5/1-�-./?�320</3?�.2:�C//1�2947:71<�@2?71<�-2K/6�0/ED70/:�4,.4-/36�21:�4-./0�,405237;/:�34:<71<A��F::7-74123�@D6.C28J�71�LD04@/2187-7/6�.26�845/�,045�-.46/�>.4�83275�-.2-�-./�6.40-�-/05�0/1-236�4,04456�21:�2@20-5/1-6�.29/�C/845/�64�3D802-79/�-.2-�-./0/�76�2�3466�4,0/1-23�.4D671<�6-48J�292732C3/�,40�-./�34823�@4@D32-741A�M045�645/0/@40-6�>/�.29/�0/2:=�-./0/�76�5/07-�71�-.76�83275A��N/640-�87-7/6�21:�-4>16�71�-./�OAPA�,28/�2�6757320�@04C3/5�71�-.2-�4D-G4,G-4>1�9767-406�20/�>73371<�-4�@2?�2�@0/57D5�,40�04456�-.2-�418/�>/0/0/1-/:�-4�6/264123�/5@34?//6=�>.4�14>�.29/�14>./0/�-4�379/A��L28.�87-?71�-.76�67-D2-741�.26�-4�>0/6-3/�>7-.�7-6�54023�21:�@028-7823�0/6@4167C737-?-4�@0497:/�.4D671<�,40�-./�6/264123�>40J/06�>.4�52J/�-./�-4D076571:D6-0?�@4667C3/AQRSTUV�WT�XRYSZ�[ST\]̂V�H./�_̀_̀�abc+dGef�@21:/578�52?�8.21</�/9/0?-.71<�@/0521/1-3?�71-/056�4,�6.40-G-/05�0/1-236=�CD-�-./�75@28-�>733�:/@/1:�41�.4>�-./@DC378�@/08/79/6�-./�62,/-?�4,�6-2?71<�71�2�0/67:/18/�4-./0�-.21�2�.4-/321:�/9/1�41�>./-./0�3/76D0/�-029/3�:757176./6�645/>.2-�49/0�2�@/074:4,�521?�541-.6�40�?/206A�H.76�,28-40�52?�<79/�5D1787@237-7/6�>.4�.29/14-�?/-�2::0/66/:�-./�766D/�645/�2::7-74123�-75/�-4�84167:/0�212@@04@072-/�0/6@416/=�CD-�>/�20/�C/--71<�-.2-�2-�645/�@471-�-./P.20/��#�#���� #�#����g��#��#�������%���������h �����������#��$�������&�i�����!�$����!& jklmm�nop�qrostoum



�������������	�
� ������������������������
�������������� ���!�"�����#

��$#���%%%& #�� �'���� ���!'������$����&����#���'����'������'(�����&��� 	�)

*+*,-./012�+3�1405�6-67681�+3�146�54./089�6:+8+72�;0--�:+8108,6�+8�015+<6/.--�,*;./=�1/68=>?8�146�:.56�+3�@+14�54+/1�16/7�/681.-�A+8089�.8=�3/66B51.8=089�1/.850681/681.-�/69,-.10+85C�7.82�:+77,801065�14.1�./6�.;./6�+3�146:+886:10+85�@61;668�DEFGHIJ�KLM�NOELEJHO�MNPNQERJNLD�4.<6�.168=68:2�1+�@6908�;014�70807.-�/69,-.10+8�.8=�1+�.==�/6S,0/676815�+8146�@.505�+3�*./10:,-./�*/+@-675�14.1�./056>�?3�146�1+;8�@6:+765�=0<0=6=+<6/�146�055,6C�4+;6<6/C�+3�:+,/56�146�/69,-.10+85�./6�-0T6-2�1+�@6�7+/651/0:1�.8=�7+/6�:/6.10<6>U10--�+146/�1+;85�:4++56�1+�098+/6�146�055,6�14.1�5+76�/650=6815�+/*/+*6/12�+;86/5�/681�+,1�4+765�3+/�.�<6/2�54+/1�16/7C�:+850=6/089�1405*/.:10:6�1+�@6�146�*/6/+9.10<6�+3�146�*/+*6/12�+;86/>�V6�.;./6�14.1146/6�;0--�@6�/65051.8:6�03�2+,�1/2�1+�-0701�*/+*6/12�+;86/5W�X6Y0@0-012>�Z5.8�6Y.7*-6C�566�+,/�6Y:4.896�;014�.�5016�<0501+/�.@+,1�@6089�[EGONM�DEIDER�GNLDHL\�D]GEF\]�̂HG_L_>�`6�566�146�+**+5016�168=68:2�08�1+;85�14.1�=+�8+1�:+850=6/�146756-<651+�@6�1+,/057�+/06816=>��a3168�1462�./6�<6/2�5,5*0:0+,5�+3�.--+;089*6+*-6�1+�/681�+,1�/++75�08�1460/�/650=68:6�3+/�.�36;�=.25C�1408T089�14.101�,8=6/70865�146�5.8:1012�+3�5089-6B3.70-2�/650=6810.-�86094@+/4++=5>�b462�4.<6�.�9++=�*+081�.:1,.--2>�`6�.=<056�2+,�1+�1408T�1405�14/+,94�@63+/6�01�@6:+765�.�@09�055,614+,94>�b46/6�7.2�@6�5+76�A+8089�=051/0:15�.8=�6<68�5+76�*./10:,-./-+1�:+8c9,/.10+85�;46/6�.82�*+16810.-�=05/,*10+8�;+,-=�@6�70807.-C�@,1;46/6�146�6:+8+70:�@686c15�1+�*/+*6/12�+;86/5�:+,-=�@6�/6.->�d./10:,-./-2�08�.8�,8.11/.:10<6�/6.-�651.16�7./T61C�.--+;089�54+/1�16/7/681.-�A+8089�05�*/+@.@-2�8+1�.�@.=�0=6.C�.5�-+89�.5�146�*6/:681.96�+3�1464+,5089�51+:T�=6<+16=�1+�1405�,56�05�57.-->�e/+7�146�:+77,8012*6/5*6:10<6C�54+/1�16/7�/681.-�,56�05�*/+@.@-2�*/636/.@-6�1+�.�4+,569+089�081+�3+/6:-+5,/6>U+76�.*./176815�/,8�146756-<65C�08�.�5+/1�+3�.@568166�_NM�KLM_GNKf[KID�501,.10+8>�g+;6<6/C�;6�/6:+7768=�14.1�01�05�@651�1+�/6S,0/6�.76.80893,-�51.2�03�146/6�05�8+�+8B*/67056�+;86/�+/�7.8.96/>�a,/�.=<0:6;+,-=�@6�1+�/6S,0/6�.�51.2�+3�.1�-6.51�14/66�=.25�@,1�*/636/.@-2�c<6�1+56<68>b405�.--+;5�146�86094@+/5�1+�7+801+/�146�501,.10+8�@6116/>�?3�86;�*6+*-6:.8�:+76�08�6<6/2�80941C�86094@+/5�;0--�168=�1+�54/,9�1460/�54+,-=6/5U4./6��#�#���� #�#����h��#��#�������%���������i �����������#��$�������&�j�����!�$����!& klmnn�opq�rsptupvn



�������������	�
� ������������������������
�������������� ���!�"�����#

��$#���%%%& #�� �'���� ���!'������$����&����#���'����'������'(�����&��� )�*

+,-./01�23456,3,1/67898:,;183< =,3/3>�?,.�@84234�@.82A?20< B,34,B,398.0/,3=,3/3> =,3/3>C8>-:2</,30
DEFGH�DIJHKLIM�NHODIMP�HKPJ�NPPQ�RGH�PDSK�SFTTGILHJ�ULVV�IPPW�HFPXDVGDHP�LHN�FUI�NLHGDHLFI�HF�WPHPOTLIP�KFU�HF�DWWOPNN�KFTP�NKDOLIMQBY86A�Z-<�+Y808�[2>80�C8:8923<�+,�+Y8�\Y,.<�+8.1�C83<2:78]2<8

B,11-3/<̂�7898:,;183<��_�=,3/3>��_�\Y,.<̀+8.1�C83<2:�=,3/3>aGENSOLEP�HF�FGO�TFIHKVJ�PbTDLV�IPUNVPHHPOc�SDVVPW�d\5edfBZggdhi+j�[fd\c�UKLSK�kOFXLWPN�JFG�ULHK�NKFOH�lPDHGOPN�FO�HLkNDEFGH�HLTPVJ�HFkLSN�lFO�IPLMKEFOKFFWNc�HFUIN�DIW�SLHLPNc�SFTTGILHJFOMDILmDHLFINc�OGODV�PIXLOFITPIHNc�DIW�FGO�LIHPOIDHLFIDV�lOLPIWNQnINGENSOLEP�DIJ�HLTPQ�oLXP�LH�D�HOJQpqrsts�rq�ru�tprau�vw�xprya�z{�ropQs�|r}p�ypr~�r�~�r��p�u�u|p�[Ci��Bj�[ZfiBjQs�n�~pyaur�~�u|ru�xzn��stt�nap�qxs�{zyqrusz��uz�ap�~�qp�r��p�atpuupyQ�����������aKDOP��#�#���� #�#�������#��#�������%���������� �����������#��$�������&�������!�$����!& ������������������



LegisBrief
A QUICK LOOK INTO IMPORTANT ISSUES OF THE DAY

BY SAVANNAH GILMORE

They go by a variety of names: vacation rentals, 
transient accommodations, home sharing, Airbnbs. 
Whatever you call them, short-term rental proper-
ties have experienced significant growth over 
the past decade. They not only make up a sizable 
portion of today’s lodging industry, they also affect 
multiple public policy issues ranging from regula-
tion to taxation. 

Action on short-term rentals is continually taking 
place across the states and it does not appear it will 
subside anytime soon.

State Action
n Regulation. Short-term rental regulations—
such as local zoning restrictions, registration 
requirements and banning short-term rentals 

completely—vary widely, with many states leaving 
the decision-making to municipalities. 

However, some states have limited local author-
ity on the issue: Arizona, Florida, Idaho, Indiana, 
Tennessee and Wisconsin have enacted legisla-
tion prohibiting short-term rental bans. And 
several states protect localities’ abilities to do so 
in certain circumstances, while Wisconsin only 
restricts banning rentals of seven consecutive 
days or more.  

In New York, individuals are banned from renting 
out non-owner-occupied apartments for fewer 
than 30 days, and in 2016, the state reinforced 
the ban by enacting legislation that prohibits any 
advertising of these units as short-term vacation 
rentals. Reports, however, have found that these 
rentals continue to exist. 

SEPT. 2018  |  VOL. 26, NO. 35

More States Taking Action  
On Short-Term Rentals

Did You Know?
• A 2016 Pew 
Research Center 
report found roughly 
1 in 10 American 
adults had stayed 
overnight at a private 
residence that was 
booked using a 
home-sharing site.

• According to a 
separate 2016 Pew 
Research Center 
report, 1 percent 
of Americans had 
earned money in 
the last year from an 
online vacation rental 
platform. 

• There may be 
significant differences 
in regulations based 
on whether a short-
term rental is the 
owner’s primary 
residence.

https://www.mcgill.ca/newsroom/files/newsroom/channels/attach/airbnb-report.pdf
http://www.pewinternet.org/2016/05/19/shared-home-sharing-services/
http://www.pewinternet.org/2016/05/19/shared-home-sharing-services/
http://www.pewinternet.org/2016/05/19/shared-home-sharing-services/
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/11/17161707/PI_2016.11.17_Gig-Workers_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/11/17161707/PI_2016.11.17_Gig-Workers_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/11/17161707/PI_2016.11.17_Gig-Workers_FINAL.pdf


One proposed approach, not yet enacted, is state-
level registration requirements for short-term 
vacation rentals, as introduced during Vermont’s 
2018 legislative session with SB 204. Additionally, 
the Massachusetts General Court passed HB 4841, 
which would have created a state-level short-term 
rental registry. However, Governor Charlie Baker 
(R) returned the bill with several proposed amend-
ments following the conclusion of the formal 
session. 

Although there are no general statewide registra-
tion requirements, other than for tax purposes in 
some states, some bills require short-term rental 
owners to comply with specific regulations. Wash-
ington, for example, enacted HB 1757 in 2017, 
which expanded statutory language to include 
transient accommodations as property subject to 
reporting hazardous chemical contamination to 
the Department of Health. And, in 2017, Virginia 
enacted SB 1578, authorizing localities to create 
registration requirements for short-term rentals. 

n Taxation. Another significant short-term rental 
issue is the proper tax collection and remittance of 
sales and/or lodging taxes at state and local levels. 
A report examining Airbnb, released by New York’s 
state attorney general’s office, found New York City 
hosts were liable for more than $33 million in taxes 
from 2010 to 2014, not including fines or penalties. 
The report found “few” hosts had filed necessary 
paperwork with the city to collect and remit these 
taxes, resulting in a large amount of unpaid occu-
pancy taxes. Additionally, a lack of proper report-
ing related to short-term rental income has made 
it difficult to collect accurate amounts for personal 
income tax purposes.

According to the Bloomberg Tax 2018 Survey of 
State Tax Departments, 25 states place the obliga-
tion on the owners of short-term rental accommo-
dations to collect sales tax, while 14 states place it 
on the third-party facilitator. More than 20 states 
include any fees paid to the facilitator in the taxable 
price of the rentals.

A collection method spearheaded by Airbnb, in 
which the company has entered into voluntary 
contract agreements with departments of revenue 
to collect and remit taxes on hosts’ behalves, has 
become increasingly popular.

But this approach hasn’t worked with all rental 
platforms. According to Vermont’s 2017 Short-
Term Rental Working Group Report, the De-
partment of Taxes tried to enter into a similar 
agreement with HomeAway, the parent com-
pany of VRBO. But since the site does not hold 
any financial transactions, short-term rental 
owners are still responsible for collecting and 
remitting taxes and fees to the state. However, 
primarily due to changes in state law, Home-

Away began collecting and remitting state taxes in 
Idaho, Oregon and Washington in 2018.

And, it’s worth noting, while these contract agree-
ments have been praised for increasing feasibility 
of hosts’ tax collection, they also have been criti-
cized for not being transparent. A former Montana 
Department of Revenue director authored a re-
port, supported by the American Hotel and Lodg-
ing Association, that criticized these agreements’ 
lack of accountability on the accurate payment of 
lodging taxes. This was because the contracts he 
examined gave substantial control of the payment 
and audit process to Airbnb. According to the 
report, these agreements generally protect lodging 
operators from being identified to public agencies.

Federal Action
Although no federal legislation has been enacted 
in direct response to the rise of short-term rentals, 
there are specific laws that relate to the federal 
protection of short-term rental marketplace plat-
forms. According to the 2017 League of California 
Cities report, these laws include the Communica-
tions Decency Act, which protects online rental 
marketplace platforms from being held liable for 
“information provided by another content provid-
er.” Another law cited in the report is the Stored 
Communications Act, which complicates the ability 
of government entities to impose requirements 
for online rental marketplace platforms to disclose 
transaction information.

National Conference of State Legislatures  |  William T. Pound, Executive Director
7700 East First Place, Denver, Colorado 80230, 303-364-7700 | 444 North Capitol Street, N.W., Suite 515, Washington, D.C. 20001, 202-624-5400

www.ncsl.org   |   The information contained in this LegisBrief does not necessarily reflect NCSL policy.

NCSL Contact
Savannah Gilmore 
303-856-1425

Additional 
Resources
• Pew Research 
Center, “Shared 
Collaborative and On 
Demand: The New 
Digital Economy,” 
May 2016

• Pew Research 
Center, “Gig Work, 
Online Selling and 
Home Sharing,” 
November 2016

• NCSL, “Principles for 
the Taxation of Online 
Travel Companies 
and Short-Term 
Rental Marketplaces,” 
November 2017

Do you know 
your hosts? 
There are two distinct 
types of short-term 
rental hosts:

n The Greeters: 
Primary residence hosts 
are homeowners who 
live in the residence and 
offer rooms or parts of 
the home as short-term 
rentals. 

n The Unseen: Non-
owner-occupied short-
term vacation rentals 
are apartments and 
homes where the host  
is not present during  
a stay.

https://legislature.vermont.gov/bill/status/2018/S.204
https://malegislature.gov/Bills/190/H4841
http://apps2.leg.wa.gov/billsummary?BillNumber=1757&Year=2017&BillNumber=1757&Year=2017
https://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+sum+SB1578
https://ag.ny.gov/pdfs/AIRBNB%20REPORT.pdf
https://www.airbnb.com/help/article/653/in-what-areas-is-occupancy-tax-collection-and-remittance-by-airbnb-available
https://legislature.vermont.gov/assets/Legislative-Reports/2017-Act76-ShortTermRental.pdf
https://legislature.vermont.gov/assets/Legislative-Reports/2017-Act76-ShortTermRental.pdf
https://help.homeaway.com/articles/What-Stay-Taxes-Lodging-Taxes-does-HomeAway-collect-and-remit
https://help.homeaway.com/articles/What-Stay-Taxes-Lodging-Taxes-does-HomeAway-collect-and-remit
https://www.ahla.com/sites/default/files/Airbnb_Tax_Agreement_Report_0.pdf
https://www.ahla.com/sites/default/files/Airbnb_Tax_Agreement_Report_0.pdf
https://www.ahla.com/
https://www.ahla.com/
https://www.cacities.org/Resources-Documents/Member-Engagement/Professional-Departments/City-Attorneys/Library/2017/Spring-Conf-2017/Heneghan-ResidentialRentalRegulationIssues
https://www.cacities.org/Resources-Documents/Member-Engagement/Professional-Departments/City-Attorneys/Library/2017/Spring-Conf-2017/Heneghan-ResidentialRentalRegulationIssues
mailto:savannah.gilmore@ncsl.org
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/05/PI_2016.05.19_Sharing-Economy_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/05/PI_2016.05.19_Sharing-Economy_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/05/PI_2016.05.19_Sharing-Economy_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/05/PI_2016.05.19_Sharing-Economy_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/11/17161707/PI_2016.11.17_Gig-Workers_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/11/17161707/PI_2016.11.17_Gig-Workers_FINAL.pdf
http://assets.pewresearch.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2016/11/17161707/PI_2016.11.17_Gig-Workers_FINAL.pdf
http://www.ncsl.org/portals/1/documents/statefed/Taxation_Online_TravelCos_Short-Term_Rental.pdf
http://www.ncsl.org/portals/1/documents/statefed/Taxation_Online_TravelCos_Short-Term_Rental.pdf
http://www.ncsl.org/portals/1/documents/statefed/Taxation_Online_TravelCos_Short-Term_Rental.pdf
http://www.ncsl.org/portals/1/documents/statefed/Taxation_Online_TravelCos_Short-Term_Rental.pdf
http://www.ncsl.org/portals/1/documents/statefed/Taxation_Online_TravelCos_Short-Term_Rental.pdf


Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: Nov. 16, 2021 

Re: Selling surplus fire equipment 

 

Fire Chief Dan MacKenzie is seeking Selectboard authorization to advertise for 
sale surplus fire equipment, including old tank truck 65, which is 30-plus years 
old and has been replaced by a recently acquired truck. Additionally, the Fire & 
Rescue Department wants to sell some air bottles that retain a little resale value 
as well as some old air packs the department no longer has use for and would 
like to remove from storage at the Dalton properties.  

The items would be advertised for sale and bids accepted for at least two weeks. 
The advertisements would be posted on the Maine Municipal Association and 
Town websites, the Town’s Facebook page, and on the Town Office marquee. 
We will also disseminate the request for bids to other volunteer departments and 
through the Maine town managers listserv.  

Chief MacKenzie will be at the meeting to answer questions.  

FYI, here’s the truck’s info:  

• Body 
o 3,000-gallon steel body with dump chute  
o Portable collapsible dump tank 
• Truck 
o Chassis manufactured July 1987 
o GMC Sierra 7000 diesel 
o Dual rear axle 
o 6-speed manual transmission 
o Gross vehicle weight 48,860 
o 19,199 miles  
o 8.2L Detroit diesel Allison motor model 40877336 
• Portable pump if sold as a firetruck 
o 18 HP hale pump 
o V-twin OHV vanguard (by Briggs and Stratton motor)  












	str memo
	Nov. 16, 2021, Selectboard agenda and background packet
	special town meeting warrant
	Nov. 16, 2021, agenda
	Nov. 9, 2021, Selectboard minutes
	appointments
	committee application memo
	appointment policy

	S Bradshaw Cmte Application_Redacted
	senior center
	str
	str memo
	cape elizabeth ordinance
	short-term_rentals_ordinance
	article I Short-Term Rentals
	§ 116-1 Purpose.
	§ 116-2 Applicability.
	§ 116-3 Definitions.
	§ 116-4 General requirements.
	§ 116-5 Review procedure.
	§ 116-6 Submission requirements.
	§ 116-7 Standards.
	§ 116-8 Suspension and revocation of license.
	§ 116-9 Limitations on annual licenses for short-term rental units.
	§ 116-10 Violations and penalties; enforcement.
	§ 116-11 Additional regulations.


	Maine Archives - Hostfully
	Short Term Rental Zoning Advice for Community Leaders
	ShortRentals_Sep2018_35_v01

	fire equipment memo
	warrant 137




